
Waterford Selectboard Special Meeting 
Monday, November 3rd @ 6 pm 

Davies Memorial Library 
 

In Attendance: Ron Gray, Will Jones, Sue Hayes, Tim Yarrow 
 
Ron Gray called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Modifications to Agenda 
 

●​ Added “Agenda Items for Next Meeting” after OML Violation.  
 

Allegation of Open Meeting Violation 

●​ Ron asked how the Board wanted to proceed with the allegation in the letter. 

●​ Will expressed that the allegation should be read into the record as written. 

●​ Tim questioned whether, due to the rambling nature of the letter, that it was largely incoherent, 

and that maybe it would be better to summarize the allegation.   

●​ Will disagreed with Tim. 

●​ Ron said it made more sense to just read it, Sue agreed, and Ron proceeded to read the letter in 

its entirety. 

●​ The letter was written by Kathy Hogdson, alleging an open meeting violation occurred on 

October 22, 2025, beginning at about 1 PM at the Davies Memorial Library. (A copy of the letter 

is attached as Appendix A to these minutes). 

●​ After Ron finished, Will asked if he could read a statement into the record.  Ron stated yes. 

●​ Will read his statement into the record (A copy of his statement is attached as Appendix B to 

these minutes.) 

●​ After Will finished reading his statement, Tim agreed with everything Will stated and added that 

he never discussed any town business with Will and Sue and that any town business he 

conducted with the Hayes’ had been approved by the Board in earlier open meetings. 

●​ Sue said she had prepared some comments regarding the allegations but stated that Will’s 

statement covered everything that she would have added. Sue further stated that it was 

insulting that the complainant took pictures of her and Will’s cars, and expressed frustration that 

Mrs. Hodgdon could have either asked her and Will or Town Clerk Deb Benoit what the two of 

them were working on, but nevertheless pursued her complaint of a violation of the open 

meeting law. 

●​ Will then asked Ron if Assistant Town Treasurer Marcel LaPierre and Deb also signed the 

complaint as Mrs. Hodgdon requested in her email. Ron answered that he had not received any 

response from either of them.   

●​ Tim asked Ron if he had any knowledge of whether Ms. Hodgdon approached the two to sign the 

complaint, or was it only asked in the email that was sent to Ron that was before the 

Selectboard.  Ron answered that he did not know and that he had spoken to Ms. Hodgdon 2 days 

before she sent the email.  Ron had spoken to Ms. Hodgdon since the email, but had spoken to 

Marcel and Deb before receiving the email.   



●​ Tim asked if Ron had any conversation with Ms. Hodgdon about the substance of the allegations 

in her complaint.  Ron responded that Ms. Hodgdon did not call him, but he saw Ms. Hodgdon at 

a social gathering place.  She was speaking to Marcel Lapierre when Ron approached them, at 

which point Mrs. Hodgdon told Ron essentially everything that was in the complaint.  Ron also 

said that Marcel had emailed him on the afternoon of October 22nd to say that he believed an 

illegal open meeting was taking place upstairs.  Ron stated that before his conversation with Mrs. 

Hodgdon he had spoken with Sue about what took place on October 22nd, at which point Sue 

explained to him what occurred that day. Later, when Ron spoke with Mrs. Hodgdon he told her 

that he did not believe an open meeting violation took place that day.  Ron indicated that Mrs. 

Hodgdon did not give him any indication that she would file a complaint about an open meeting 

violation.   

●​ Tim asked Ron whether he had said to Mrs. Hodgdon anything that would have mitigated her 

from filing a complaint.  Ron answered that he told Mrs. Hodgdon that Sue and Will were 

researching past town budgets.  And that Tim had been authorized by the Selectboard to bring 

to some resolution a matter with the Hayes’.  Ron said that he told Mrs. Hodgdon that from what 

he had heard so far that he did not believe an open meeting violation had taken place.  Ron 

stated that he was not sure if he should have even engaged in the conversation with Mrs. 

Hodgdon, to which Tim replied that he thought it would be appropriate to engage her and that 

what she heard would have persuaded her not to take the action that she did and not make a 

public matter out of this.   

●​ Will stated that the complaint filed triggered a process under VSA to have a special public 

meeting on the matter, the reason why they were all meeting this evening.  

●​ Sue stated that the 3 board members alleged to have violated the open meeting law have 

expressed their denial and Ron stated that he did not see that an open meeting violation took 

place either.   

●​ Will then discussed what procedures the Selectboard needs to follow now that all appear to 

deny that a violation took place.   

●​ Tim, Sue and Will discussed what action, if any, and in what form, did the Selectboard need to 

take.  Will then referred to a communication from the VLCT regarding the process the 

Selectboard should follow in response to the complaint, to make a statement denying the 

allegation admitting if it was an inadvertent violation.  The Selectboard then discussed what 

constituted a statement. 

●​ Sue made a motion that the Selectboard deny an open meeting violation occurred and that no 

cure is necessary.  Will seconded the motion.  There was no further discussion on the motion. 

●​ Ron asked whether or not a direct response to the complainant was necessary.  Tim expressed 

that from what Will read from the VLCT that a statement made at the meeting was in the public 

record and that nothing else should need to be done. 

●​ Tim rephrased the motion in the form of a statement to read: “The Waterford Selectboard 

denies any open meeting violation took place as alleged in Kathleen Hodgdon’s email of October 

26, 2025 and therefore no cure is necessary” Motion passed 4-0 (Wade Cochran absent).  

 

 

Agenda Items for Next Meeting: 



 

●​ Approve meeting minutes. 

●​ Cemetery update and deeds. 

●​ Budget presentation. 

●​ Citizens’ concerns. 

●​ Executive session – employee performance reviews. 

 

Sue Hayes made a motion to adjourn. William seconded the motion. Motion passed 4-0. Meeting 

adjourned at 6:38pm. 

Appendix A: 

 



 



 

 



Appendix B: 

 

On Tuesday, October 21st, after the conclusion of the Selectboard Special Meeting, Sue 
Hayes and I arranged for the two of us to get together around 1:00pm the following afternoon in 
the Davies Memorial Library to discuss town budget matters. We sat at one of the wooden tables 
to the right of the door that leads downstairs.  
 

At some point later within the first hour of Sue and my meeting, Tim Yarrow arrived at 
the library along with a town employee and their spouse. Unbeknownst to Sue and I, Tim had 
scheduled to meet with the two of them that afternoon regarding a private personnel matter. Tim 
and the other two attendees of his meeting sat on the far side of the library by the fireplace, 
approximately 30 feet away from where Sue and I were working. At no point did Sue or I listen 
to or interact with the discussion Tim was having, nor did he listen to or interact with Sue and I 
concerning the budget research we were doing.  

 
After Tim’s meeting ended, the other two participants walked by the table where Sue and 

I were working and exchanged pleasantries with us. They left, and Tim sat down in an arm chair 
across the aisle from us. At this point, Sue and I stopped working and engaged in a brief 
conversation with Tim about our personal lives. At no point did any of us discuss what we were 
working on in our respective groups, nor did we discuss any other pending town business. After 
about 10-15 minutes of the personal conversation among the three of us, Tim got up and left, and 
Sue and I resumed our work.  
 
​ 1 V.S.A. 310 (5)(A) defines a meeting as “a gathering of a quorum of the members of a 
public body for the purpose of discussing the business of the public body or for the purpose of 
taking action.” 1 V.S.A. 310 (5)(C) further clarifies that a meeting “shall not mean occasions 
when a quorum of a public body attends social gatherings, conventions, conferences, training 
programs, press conferences, media events, or otherwise gathers, provided that the public body 
does not discuss specific business of the public body that, at the time of the exchange, the 
participating members expect to be business of the public body at a later time.” 
 
​ Because no town business was discussed or conducted in the short time the three of us 
spoke, under state statute 1 V.S.A. 310 (5)(C) a meeting did not take place. Furthermore, the 
mere fact of the three of us being in the same physical building or even the same large room does 
not constitute a meeting because our meetings and conversations were separate, and at no point 
were the contents thereof discussed among the three of us.  
 
​ Because the interactions that Sue, Tim, and I had do not meet the statutorial definition of 
a meeting, that we never met to discuss, nor did we at anytime discuss, specific business of the 
Town of Waterford among us, therefore there was no violation of the Open Meeting Law 



contained in 1 V.S.A 310(5)(C) because no illegal meeting took place.  Furthermore, the specious 
allegations of the complainant are patently false and meritless. 
 


